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Notes to Bidders 

 

1.  This document provides the answers to the questions that were asked by interested 

bidders, following the launching of the RFP to “the Implementation of Eco-friendly and 

Environmental Measures in Fourteen (14) Public Schools in Lebanon” under SUFA 

project. 

 

2. The questions are divided in two categories; general questions related to proposal, and 

specific questions related to technical requirements of the RFP. 

 

3. This document shall be considered an integral part of the RFP. 
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General Questions: 
 

Q1. Shall the contractor pay the bid bond amount upon the bid presentation or after winning the bid? 

A1. Bid Bond is an integral part of the bidder’s proposal. Bid bond submission form (Form 3 of the 

RFP) shall be filled, signed and submitted. The bid bond shall be paid separately when submitting 

the bidder’s proposal. Every bidder will receive a document from the LCEC confirming the payment 

of the bid bond. The conditions of returning the bid bond are available in Form 3 of the RFP. A 

failure in submission of bid bond (Form 3) or submission of any alternate form/text would result 

in the rejection of the Bid. 

 

Q2. Shall the cash bond of 10000$ be paid in cash to LCEC or check bond? 

A2. The bid bond shall be made payable in cash only to the LCEC along with the submitted 

proposals. 

 

Q3. Can the selected company pay this cash bond after the win directly before the contract? 

A3. No. Bid bond must be paid on the submission of the proposal as it is a requirement to be 

included in the bidder’s proposal. Failure of submission of bid bond prior the deadline of submission 

of proposals would result in the rejection of the bid. 

 

Q4. Could you please clarify if the official documents of the company can be submitted as copies or they 

shall be original copies? 

A4. Signed and Stamped copies of company’s official documents can be submitted. 

 

Q5. Regarding the bank account, we no longer deal with banks since the beginning of the crisis. There 

are no operating bank accounts since October 17. What is the solution to the company's account 

statement in this case? 

A5. All bidders shall have a bank account. Winning bidder cannot receive payments in cash. All 

payment shall be made by LCEC via bank transfers from fresh account to a fresh account.  

 

Q6. If a company wins the tender, what is the percentage of the down-payment that the company will 

receive? 

A6. Payment schedule will be mentioned in the contract to be signed by the winning bidder. 

Payments percentages amount will be decided by LCEC at a further stage and are subject to 

negotiation with the winning bidder based on the proposed schedule of work and in accordance 

with the list of deliverables indicated in the RFP. 
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Technical Questions: 

 

Q7. Regarding Prototype outdoor classroom, Is there any requirement for drainage? 

A7. Yes, all prototypes shall have an embedded counter sink that requires a drainage system. 

 

Q8. Regarding the Amphitheatre, what shall be the material around the amphitheater and the nature 

of the floor? 

A8. Around the amphitheater is a Pavement tile, and the floor is concrete tile. 

 

Q9. Is there any mechanism required for the canopy louvers? 

A9. No mechanism is required for the canopy louvers as they are fixed. 

 

Q10. Regarding Priority 3 – Classroom: Is the paint of this room white and should it follow the Specs? 

A10. All items should follow the presented specification, moreover, this room is for kids’ activities, 

the walls will be colored according to this purpose: yellow/blue or yellow/green. 

   

Q11. What kind of planters are required? 

A11. Depending on each school location and height, with minimum maintenance. Refer to 

Planting Guide Prototype subject of Annex 1 of this document. 

 

Q12. Regarding toilets maintenance: What kind of maintenance is required? 

A12. Light mending and reparation (Water leakage for faucets or toilet flash system, etc.), no toilet 

demolition, walls leakage or fixtures modifications. 

 

Q13. Any need to build underground water tanks? 

A13. No underground water tanks are required, new water tank’s location must be as fixed on 

drawings. 

 

Q14. What shall be the height of concrete pots (75cm x 100cm)? 

A14. Not less than 45cm, knowing that those items are standardized and can be purchased from 

local market. 

 

 



 

 

5 

 

 

Q15. Any specific design for concrete bench back? 

A15. No, these items are standardized and can be purchased from local market respecting the 

required dimensions.  

 

Q16. Any requirement for storage? 

A16. Contractor, along with LCEC, shall coordinate with School for reserved space for material 

storage. 

 

Q17. Are there any wooden items in the project? 

A17. Yes, priority 3 (Activity room) shall include boards and lockers for kids’ activity. 

 

Q18. Are Outdoor classroom- wooden trunks fixed? 

A18. No, wooden trunks are from treated and already cut branches and should be flexible for a 

clear passage. 

 

Q19. Regarding compost station: can this item be purchased from the local market? 

A19. This item shall be made of treated fire wood planks as shown in drawings. The contractor 

shall fabricate the item as per the prototype indicated in the drawings and item specifications 

indicated in the BoQ. 

 

Q20. Regarding Playground marking: 

Q20.1. Shall the contractor follow the same proposed colors? 

A20.1. Yes, better than having different colors for each school. 

Q20.2. Shall the contractor adjust and treat the floor before the paint? 

A.20.2. No, Playgrounds will just receive the paint without any adjustment nor treatment. 

 

Q21. Do we need a filtration system and a pump as mentioned in the RWH prototype documents for 

item 5 in the BOQ – Lot 1 in Bar Elias Elementary Public School? 

A21. Yes, a filtration system and a pump are needed for the RWH as mentioned in the prototype 

documents. 

 

Q22. Could you please specify the type and name of the planting selection for item 6 in the BOQ-lot 1 

in Bar Elias Elementary Public School? 

A22. Refer to the planting guide prototype subject of Annex 1 of this document to decide on the 

planting selection based on the zone of the school in question. 
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Annex 1: Planting Guide Prototype 
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